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Part 1; Definitions and application

1

General definitions, [and] application
and date of commencement

1.1 General definitions

In these Treasury Regulations, unless the context indicatss otherwise, a word or expression o
which a meaning has been assigned in the Act, has the same meaning, and ~

“Aet” means the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 tAct No. t of 1999 as amended by Act
No. 29 of 1999);

“debt™ means amounis owing to the state;

“division of revenue grants” refers to allocations from ths pation| government 1o other spheres
of government as listed in [Schedules 34, 3B and 3C of (1e]schedules to the Annual Division of
Revenue Act, {2000,] including transfers in terms of {secticn 16 of] that Acy;

“executive authority” in relation to a constitutiona! intitution means the chairperson of the
relevant constitutional institution;

“head official of the treasury” refers to the adminisirative head of the department responsibie for
financiat and fiscal matters and which forms part of the relevant treasury;

“Institution"” refers {o a department or a constitutional insti ution;

“official” means an employee contemplated in section 1 of the Public Service Act, 1994, read with
section 1 of the Public Service Amendment Act {Act No. 13 of 1996): and includes a magistrate

contemplated in section 1 of the Magistrates Act, 1993 (Act No. 90 of 1993} and employees of
constitutional institutioas;

[“transfer payments” refer to all transfers excluding-

(a) all division of revenue grants from the national government; and
{b) any transfers to constitutions] institutions ind individuals.]

1.2 Application

1.2.1  These Treasury Regulations apply-

(a) to all departments and constitutional instituticns; [and]

(b) to all public entities listed in Schedules 3A and 3C whose annual budget for its next
financial year is less than R100 million, but only to the extent of Chapiers 24 to 26,
28 and 30 to 33 of these Treasury Regulafiors;

{c} to all public entities listed in Schedules 3A a.1d 3C whose annual budget exceeds or
eguals R100 miilion, but only to the extent of Chapters 24 to 28 and 30 to 33 of
these Treasury Regulations;

[b}d) to the South African Revenue Service, bul only to the extent_as indicated in
Chapter 15 (paragraph 15.4) and Chapters 24. 25,27,28,30.31.32 and 33;

[ti} that it collects and administers state re.venue; and]
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ibl{d} 1c the South African Revenue Setvice, but onty 10 the extent as indicated in
Chapter 15 (paragraph 15.4) and Chapters 24, 25,27,28,30,31,32 and 33;
[ti} that it collects and administers stote revenue; and]
{(ii} as agreed to between it and the National Treasury.]

(d) to Schedule 2, 3B and 3D public entities but only to the extent as indicated in
Chapters 25,27,28,29,31,32 and 33

(e) to Parliament and the provincial legisiatures, but only to the extent as indicated in
Chapter 15 {paragraphs 15.7 and 15.8) and Chapter 18 (paragraph 18.3).

1.2.[2)3 For purposes of Schedule 3 public entities, the aext financial year ends on 31 March
2003, but begins on or after 1 September 2002 as determined by section 28.1.2 of these
regulations.

1.24 For purposes of paragraph 1.2.1[bl(8), the Treasury Regulations that do apply 1o the
South African Revenue Services, apply as though # were & department. lis
Commissioner i5 the accounting officer.

[1.2.3  These regalations do not apply to Parliament, provincial legistatures and public
entities. )

1.3 Date of commencement

1.3.1 These Treasury Regulations take effect from 1 April 2001, unless otherwise indicated in
the text.

W

————————— e
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Part 2: Management arrangements
Corporate management

2.1 Chief financial officer

211 Uniess directed otherwise by the relevant treasury, [the accounting officer of an] each
institution must [appeint an official as] have a chief financial officer {CFO) [no later
than ! April 2001,] [te] servingle] on the senior management team of the institution.

21.2  The CFQ is directly accouatable to the accounting officer.

2.1.3  Without limiting the right of the accounting officer 1o assign specific responsibilities, the
general responsibility of the CFQ is to assist the accounting officer in discharging the
duties {under] prescribed in Part 2 of Chapler 5 of the Act and the Annual Division of
Revenue Act. These duties relate to the effective financial management of the
instifution; the exercise of sound budgeting and budgetary contro] practices; the
operation of internal controls and the timely production of financial reports.
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3

Internal control

31
3Ll

347

318

{1.1.9

Audit committees [Sections 76(4)(d) and 77 of the PFMA]

[The relevant treasury may determine whether departnients have shared or non-
shared audit coramittees.] The relevant reasury oy st inform the Auditor-General by no
fater than | April 2001 of any determination i» share audit committees between

departments.

In the case of a non-shared sudit committee, the accounting officer of an institution must
appoint audit committee members in consultation wi h the relevant executive authority.

In the case of a shared audit committee, the head cF the relevant treasury must appoint
audit commiltee members after consultation with the relevant executive authorities.

In addition to section 77(a}{iii) of the Act, the chai person of the audit committee may
not be a political office bearer,

Audit commitiees must be constituted 50 as to ensurc their independence.

Members of an audit committee who have been appc inted from outside the public service
pursuant o section 77(a){i} of the Act, must have >roven experience, be appointed on
contract and remunerated in sccordance with { wita paragraphs 20.2.2 and 20.2.3 of
these Treasury Regulations] tariffs as determined by the South Afvican Institute of
Chartered Accountants in consultation with the Audi, or-General.

The relevant executive authority has to concur with 2oy pre-mature lermination of [the]
services of a person serving on the audit committee,

The audit committee must establish an audit charter to guide 1he audil approach, as well
as its modus operandi, which should spell out the rutes that govem the audit relationship,

The audit commiitee and the accounting officer enust facilitate a risk assessment to
determine the material risks to which the Institution may be expesed and to
evaluate the strategy for managing those risks. The strategy must be used to direct
audit effort and priority, and to determine the skills required to manage these
risks.]

3.1.{10]9 The audit committee must report and make recommendations to the accounting officer,

but the accounting officer retains responsibility for irmplementing such recommendations.

3.1411]10 In addition to the above, the audit commitice mus ~

(a} evaluate the financial statements of th: institution for reasonableness
[reasonability] and {accuracy] fair presentatica before submission to the Auditor-
General; {and]

{b) in the annual report [on] of the institution, comment on:[the effectiveness of
internal control in the annual report of the institution.]

(1) the effectiveness of {intemal control; and

{ii) the quality of in year management and morthly reports produced in terms of the
Act and the Annua! Division of Revenue A st
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Fart 2: Management arrongements

3.1.{12]11 Should a report from the internal audit unit (or from any other soutce} 1o the audit

commiltee implicate the accounting officer in fraud, corruption or gross negligence, the

chairperson of the audit committee must promptly report this to the relevant executive
authority.

3.1.[13]12 The audit committee may communicate any concems it deems necessary 10 the

3.2

3.2.1

execulive authority, the relevant treasury and/or the Auditor-General.

Internal cantrols and Internal audit [Sections 38(1)(a)(i) and 76{4)(e) of
the PFMA]

The accounting officer must facilitate a risk assessment to determine the material risks (o

3.2.1]2

3.2.0213

3.2.(314

3.2.0415

3.2.456

3.21617

328

which the institution may be exposed and fo evaluate the strategy for managing those
risks. Such a strategy must include a fraud prevention plan. The sirategy must be used to

direct intemnat audit effort and priority, and to determine the skills required to manage
these risks.

The accounting officer must provide a certificate to the relevant treasury by 30 June 2001
indicating that the risk assessment has been completed and that the fraud preventjon plan

is fully operational. fensure that a fraud prevention plan is developed no later than
31 March 2001,

Accounting officers must establish internal audit units for their institutions in accordance
with the policy determined in terns of paragraph 3.2.4.

[The relevant treasury may determine whether departments must have internal
audit units snd whether such units must be shared or non-shared units.] The
relevant treasury must inform the Auditor-General by no later than 1 April 2001 of any
determination to share internal audit units between departments.

The internal audit unit may be partly or wholly contracted to an extemnal organisation
with specialist audif expertise, provided that its selection is in accordance with the
government’s competitive tendering procedures.

Internal audit must be conducied in accordance with the standards set by the Institute of
Internal Auditors.

The internal audit unit must prepare, in consultation with and for approval by, the audit
commiltee—

(a) a rolling three-year strategic internal audit plan based on its assessment of key areas
of risk for the institution, having regard to its current operations, those proposed in
its strategic plan and its risk management strategy:

{b) an annual internal sudit plan for the first year of the rolling plan;

{c) plans indicating the proposed scope of each apdit in the annual internal audit plan;

() a modus operandi, with management inputs, to guide the audit relationship; and

(e} a quarterly report to the audit committee detailing its performance against the plan,
10 allow effective monitoring and possible intervention,

The internat audit unit must exercise regular oversight over all wransfers received,

3.2.0718

inctuding transfers in terms of the Annual Division of Revenue Act.

The internal aodit unit must be independent, with no limitation on ils access to
information.
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4

Financial misconduct

4.1

4.2
421

4.2.2

4.3
4.3.1

Investigation of alleged financlal miscon luct (Sactions 85(1)(b), (c)
;nd] (d) of the PFMA and Section 30 of the znnual Division of Revenue
ct

If an official is alleged to have committed financial 1 tisconduct, the accounting officer of
the institution must ensure that discipiinary proceefings are carried oul in accordance
with the relevant prescripts.

The accounting officer must ensure that the inestigation is conducted within a
reasonable period, but no later than 30 days.

It an accounting officer is alleged 10 have committe ! financial misconduct, the relevant

treasury, as soeh as it becomes aware of the allege 1 misconduct, must ensure that the

Department of Public Service and Administratioi initiales appropriate disciplinary

proceedings against the accounting officer.

A treasury may-

{a} direct that an official cther than an employ ¢ of the’institution conducts the
investigation; or

(b) issue any reasonable requirement regarding tle way in which the investigation
should be performed.

Criminal proceedings [Section 86 of the P MA]

The accounting officer must advise the executive -uthority, relevant reasury and the
Auditor-General of any criminat charges it has laid a; ainst any person in terms of section
86 of the Act,

The relevant treasury may direct an institution to lay charges of criminal financial
misconduct against any person should an accountiyg officer fail o take appropriate
action,

Reporting [Saction 85(1)(a) and (e} of the P "MA]

The accounting officer must, as soon as the disciplina 'y hearings are completed, repott to
the executive authority, the Department of Public S2rvice and Administration and the
Public Service Commission on the cutcome, including -

(a) the name and rank of the official against whorm p oceedings are instituted;
(b} the disciplinary charges, indicating the financial nisconduct the official is alleged to
" have committed;
{c} the findings of the disciplinary hearing;
(d) any sanction imposed on the official; and
(e) any furthes action to be taken against the official including criminal charges or civil
proceedings.
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4.32

4.3.3

Fart 2: Management arrangements

The institution must infoem the executive authority, the relevani treasury, the Department
of Public Service and Administration and the Public Service Commission of the outcome

of any criminal proceedings instituied against any person for financial misconduct in
terms of section 86 of the Act. :

The accounting officer must, on an anmual basis, submi to the provincial treasury (if
applicabie), {national] National Treasuty and Auditor-General 2 schedule of-

{a) the name and rank of officials facing disciplinary hearings or eriminat charges;
(b} the outcome of any disciplinary hearings and/or criminal charges; and
{e) the sanctions and any further action taken against the relevant official;

Such a report must refer to any changes to the instilution’s systems of financial and risk
management or any other matier dealt with in the Act, as a result of fhe investigation.
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Part 3: Planning and budgeting

5

Strategic planning

5.1
511

5.2
5.21
522

5.2.3

5.3
5.3.1

532

Date of implementation

This chapter takes effect from 1 April 2002. The first date for submission of strategic
plans is 30 June 2001 for the MTEF period commeacing 1 April 2002. Quarierly reports

on performance take effect from 30 June 2002, starting with a report on the first quarter
of the 2002/03 financial year.

Strategic plans

The accounting officer of an institution must prepare a strategic plan for the forthcoming

Medium Term Expendiiure Framework (MTEF) period, for approval by the relevant
executive authority.

The approved strategic ptan musi be forwarded 1o the relevant treasury no later than
30 June each year.

The strategic plan most-

(a} cover a period of three years and be consistent with the inslitution’s input to the
MTEF; '

(b} inciude the programme objectives and outcomes identified by the executive
authority, as well as the Service Delivery Improvernent Programme;

(c) include the multi-year projections of revenue and expenditure for the forthcoming
budget;

(d) include the key performance measures and key indicators of the Service Delivery
Improvement Programme for assessing the institution’s performance in delivering
the desired outcomes and objectives;

(e} be updated annually on a rolling basis, including any adjustments to the
arganisational structure;

{f) for departments, include the requirements of Chapter 1, Part 1II B of the Public
Service Regulations, [1999] 2001; and

{g) form ihe basis for the annual reports of accousting officers in terms of section
40(1)(d) and (e} of the Act.

Evaluation of performance [Section 27(4) read with 36(5) of the PFMA]

The aceounting officer of an institulion must establish procedures for quarterly reporting
to facilitate effective performance monitoring, evaluation and corrective action.

The accounting officer must issue quarterly reports to the executive authority no later
than 15 days afier the end of each quarter.

—
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Budgeting and related matters

8.1
6.1.1

6.1.3

6.2

6.2.1

6.3
6.3.1

6.4
6.4.1

6.4.2

Annual budget circular

The accounting officer of a department must comgly with any annual budger circulars
issued by the relevant treasury. Budget circulars isiued by provincial Lreasuries must be
consistent with any budget circular issued by t1e [national] National Treasury to
provincial treasuries.

The accounting officer of a constilutional institutic n must submit all submissions for a

budget via the accounting officer of the depwiment transferring funds to that
constitational institution,

The accounting officer of a department must en-ure that all budget submissions of
constitutional institutions and any public entities rezeiving wansfers via the department,

“ere included in hisfher department's budget sub nission. {unless exempted by the

relevant treasury.]

Formata for Estimates of Expenditure ar d Departmental Revenue
[Section 27(3) of the PFMA]

The Estimates of Expenditure and Depastmenial R :venue presented 1o Parliament or a
provincial legislature must conform to the formats d stermined by the [national] National
Treasury.

Virement [Section [44] 43 of the PFMA]

For purposes of section 43(1) of the Act—

{a} personne] expenditure and transfers by departinents may not be increased without
{prior] approval of the relevant treasury; and

(b} allocations earmarked by the relevan! treasury for a specific_purpose may not be
used for other purposes except with the relevanc treasury’s approval,

Rollovers [Sections 30(2)(g) and 31(2){g) cf the PFMA]

Funds appropriated but not spent in a particular financial year may be rolled over to a

subsequent year subject to the fallowing conditions or limitations—

(a) Capital expenditure: Unspent funds on capital -:xpenditure may only be rolled over
1o finalise projects still in progress or for other capital purposes.

(b) Tramsfer payments: Savings on transfer pay sents may not be railed over for
purposes other than originally voted for.

{¢) Current expenditure: A maximum of five par cent of a department’s current
expenditure in the main estimate of expenditure may be rolled over.

Requests for rollovers must be submitted 1o the relevant treasury on or before the last
working day of May each year, in a formal dete-mined by the [national] National
Treasury.
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6.4.3

Part 3: Planning and budgeting

Al requests for rollovers must include:

(a) the reasons for the under spending;

{b) commiiments that the funds rolled over will be spent;

(c) an assessment of the spending capacity faking into considetation the new

6.4.0314

6.5
6.5.1

6.5.2

6.5.3

6.5.4

budget allocation and the rolled aver funds,

The relevant treasury may deny all or part of a request for a rolover [if this request does

not conform fo the arrangements in paragraphs 6.4.1 and 6.4.2 or] if circumstances
warrant such a denial.

Transfer of functions [Section 42 of the PFMA and Segtion 27 of DORA]

Where a function is to be transferred by a department during a financial year, the relevant
treasury must be consulted in advance, to facilitate any request for the resulling transfer
of funds voted for that function in terms of section 33 of the Act.

Should the Minister of Public Service and Administration or a Premier of a province
rnake a determination regarding the transfer of a function in terms of the Public Service
Acl, 1994, that determination must accompany a request for the transfer of funds as per
paragraph 6.5.1. Should the Minister of Public Service and Administration or a Premier

approve a function transfer after the finalisation of the adjustments estimates, it must be
dealt with on a recaverable basis.

Before seeking formal approval from the Minister of Public Service and Administration

or the Premier of a province for any lransfer of functions to another sphere of .

government, the transferring accounting officer must first seek the approval of the
relevant treasury on any funding srrangements,

Transfer of funclions to munpicipalities must be dealt with in terms of the Annual

6.6.1

6.6.2

Diviston of Revenue Act.

Additional funds through an adjustments budget [Sections 30(2)(b)
and 31(2)(b) of tha PFMA]

For purposes of an adjustments budget, the following will not be considered

unforeseeable and unavoidable expenditure—

{a) expenditure that, although known when finalising the estimates of expenditure,
could not be accommodated within allocations;

{b) tariff adjustments and price increases; and

{c) extensions of existing services and the creation of new services that are not
unforeseeable and unavoidable,

The department requesting additional funds through an adjustments budget must submit a
memorandum to the relevant treasury, the Cabinet/EXCO Secretariat and any treasury
subcommittee of the Cabinel/EXCO, on a date determined by the relevant treasury, but
by no later than 15 September.
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Part 4; Revenue and expenditure managemeny

v

+

Revenue management

7.1
711

?‘2
7.2.1

7.3
7.3.1

732

00103424—C

Application of these Treasury Regulations

The Treasury Regulations in this chapter apply to the identification, collection, recording
and safeguarding of ali revenue for which an institution is responsible.

Responsibility for revenue managemant

The accounting officer of an institution must manage revenue efficiently and effectively
by developing and implementing appropriate processes that provide for the identification,
collection, safeguarding, recording and reconciliation of information about revenue.

Services randered by the state

The accounting officer of an institution must review, at least annually when finalising the
budget, all fees, charges ot the rates, scales or tariffs of fees and charges that are not, or
cannot, be fixed by any law and that relate o revenue accruing to a revenue fund. The
accounting officer must obiain approval from the relevant treasury for the proposed tariff
structure.

Information on the tariff [pelicy] structure must be disclosed in the annual report,
including Infarmation on any free service(s) rendered, but not taken into account in the
budget and which could have yielded significant revenue.



-1

26 No. 22141

GOVERNMENT GAZETTE, 9 Mr RCH 2001

Treasury Regulations: PEMA

8

Expenditure managemaent'

8.1
8.1.1

8.2
8.2.1

822

823

8.2.4

Responsibility of the accounting officar [Section 76(4)(b) of the PFMA]

The accounting officer of an institution must ens ire that internal provedures and internal
control measures are in place for payment approval and processing.

Approval of expenditure {Section 38(1).f) and 76(4)(b) of the PFMA]

An official of an institution may not spend or commit public money except with the
approval (either in writing or by duly authorised electronic means) of a properly
delegated or authorised officer.

Before approving expenditure or incurring a ¢ vmmitment to spend, the delegated or
authorised official must ensure that any limiations or conditions attached to the
delegation or authorisation are complied with.

Unless determined otherwise in a contract or sther agreement, all paymehis due to
creditors musst be settied within 30 days from th: date of a statement which reflects all
invoices, payments and credits and, in the ciie of civil claims, from the date of
settlement or court judgement,

Where creditors have not been settled within the period prescribed in paragraph 8.2.3, a

8.3
8.3.1

832

8.3.3

8.3.4

report must be forwarded to the EXCO and 10 the refevant treasury stating reasons for the
nor-compliance.

Personnel costs [Section 76(4)(b) of the PFMA]

Activities relating 10 the authorisation of appoirtments, the authorisation of payments
and the recording of those payments may not be prformed by the same person,

The accounting officer of an institution must ‘nsure that the personnel cost of ail
2ppointees, as well as promotion and salary increases, can be met within the budgetary
allocation of the institution.

Unless otherwise determined by the Inational] Nitional Treasury, personnel are divided
into the following groups for the payment of salarizs—

{a) Group A: Persons who must be paid on the 15th day of the month, or if it is not a
working day, on the last working day preceding the 15th. These include—

(i} persons appeinted permanently on the fixed establishment and employed in
terms of the Public Service Act, 1994; ard

(ii} persons eppointed on contract,
(b) Group B: This group represents personnel pa:d on the last working day of the month
and includes temporary and part-time staff, ar § persons appointed on probation.

For both Group A and B employees, the person in charge at the respective pay-points

must cerlify that all persons listed on the payroll report are entitled for paymeni. Persons

paid by cheque must sign on the payroll report upon callection of the cheque.
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Within 10 days after its certification, the payroll report mus! be returned for the attention

84

[8.4.1

(8.5

8.4.1

of the chief financial officer. The chief financial officer must ensure that alt pay-point
certificates have been received on a monthly basis.

[Division of Revenue grants] Transfers and grants [Section 38(1)(i)
and (j) of the PFMA]

Accounting officers of departments making or receiving grants to or from other
spheres of governruent in terms of the annual Division of Revenue Act must comply
with the reporting requirements of that Act.]

Transier payments (excluding Division of Revenue grants) [Section
38(1)(j) of the PFMAT]

An accounting officer transferring any grant or iransfer, excepting those to constitutional

842

institutions, househotds or as unconditional contributions must ensure that all such grants
are subject to an audii on expenditure as prescribed by the Act.

Accounting officers making graats or transfers must, by 30 April 2001, classify these as

B.4.3

follows:

(a} Grants and contributions, which are grants to households and uncondilional
contributions which do not cequire any further auditing after transfer;

()] Division of Revenue Grants, which arg graqis to other spheres of government,
and which fall under the annual Division of Revenue Act;

ic) Statutory prants which are grants to constifutional institutions and grants to
public entities to perform functions in terms of an Act governing that entity,

(d) Programme grants which are grants to public or private entities for the
purpose of fulfilling a function budgeted in or within 2 main division of that
department, where such a department is directly responsible for specific

outpuis.

The accounting officer responsible for transferring a programme granl must ensure that

the receiving entity for programme grants submits monthly reports ten days after the end
of each month on actual expenditure. Such reporis must be reported when compiling the
depanument's monthly section 40{4) reports.

8.(5]4.11)4 Processes for transfer payments must ensure compliance with alf relevant legislation

and government policies, and provide for the identification, approval, payment and
recording of transfer payiment expenses.

8.[5]14.12]5 The accounting officer of any institution transferring funds not covered by the annual

Division of Reveaue Act, and where the transfer is not to a gramt or contribution, or a
statutory grant to a _constitutional _institution or public _entity fan individua),
constitutional institution, public entity] or an institution audited by the Office of the
Auditor-General, must ensure that the institution receiving the grant submits with its
certificate of compiiance in terms of section 38(1)(j) of the Act, the most recent aydited
statement and any annual report, before any funds are transferred. [An accounting
officer transferring funds to a school, hospital or clinic may delay implementation
of this clause, if aplicable, but no later than 3t January 2001.)

8.{514.[3)6 Approving transfer payment expenses includes-

(a) incurring a transfer payment expense for authorised purposes only; and
(b) ensuring that-
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(i} the beneficiary complied with the conditicas, if any, attached to the previous
year’s assistance;

(ii) continwed assistance and financial aid are st]l necessary;
(ii)) the agreed abjectives were attained; and

(iv) the transfer payment expense provides reas:nable value for money in procuring
programmes related to the functional resporsibility of the department.

8.1514.14]7 A transfer payment must not be made unless and uotil—

8.I615

8.1615.1

8.1716
8.0716.1

8.7

(a} proper assurarice has been obtained that the payment is valid and the amount is
correct; and

(b} the department has made adequate cash managerient arrangements.

Charging of expenditure against a particular vote or main division of
a vote [Saction 76(2)(b) of the PFMA]

Should a dispute arise aver which vote or main division of a vote should be charged with
any particular expenditure, ihe relevant treasury must settle the dispute and determine the
vote or main division against which the expenditure rust be charged.

Cancellation and variation of contracts [S 3ction 76(1)(¢) of the PFMA]

No contract (excluding personnel contracts) may be cancelled or changed 1o the
detriment of the state without the [prior} approval of ‘he relevant treasury.

Procurement

8.7.1

Accounting officers must ensure_that adequate procedures are in place within their

insfitutions to protect the interests of the State as changes are made 1o procurement
a.rrangemenls.
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Unauthorised, irregular, fruitless
and wasteful expenditure

8.1
9.1.1

912

9.1.3

914

9.1.5

General [Sections 38(1}{(g) and 76(2){s) of the PFMA]

The accounting officer of 2 depariraent must exercise all reasonable care to prevent and
detect unauthorised, irreguiar, fruitless and wasteful expenditure, and must for this

purpose implernent eifective, efficient and transparent processes of financial and risk
management.

When an official of a department discavers unauthorised, irregular or fruitless and
wasteful expenditure, that official must immediately report such expenditure to the
accounting officer. Such expenditure must also be reported in the monthly report, as
required by section 40(4)(b) of the Act. Where imegular expenditure occumed in
contravention of tender procedures, the relevant lender board must also be notified.

When an accounting cfficer determines the appropriateness of disciplinary steps against
an official in terms of section 38(1){g) of the Aci, the accounting officer must take into
account—

(a) the'Circumstances of the transgression;

() the extent of the expenditure involved; and

(¢) the nature and seriousness of the transgression.

The recovery of losses or damages resulting from unauthorised, irregular or fruitless and

wasteful expenditure must be dealt with in accordance with Chapter 12 of these Treasury
Regulations.

The amount of the unauthorised, irregular, fruitiess and wasteful expenditure must be
disclosed as a note (o the annual financial statements of the institution.
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Asset management

10.1
10.1.1

10.1.2

10.2
10.2.1

19.2.2

10.2.3

10.2.4

10.3

10.3.1

Responsibility for asset management [Section 38(1)(d) of the PFMA]

The accounting officer of an iastitution must take full responsibility and ensure that
proper control systems exist for assets and that—

{a} preventative mechanisms are in place 10 eliminate theft, losses, wastage and misuse;
and

{b} stock levels are at an optimum and economizal level,

The accounting officer must ensure that processes (whether manual or electronic} and

procedures are int place for the effective, efficient, economical and transparent use of the
institution's assels,

Dispasal and letting of assets {Section 76(1)(k) of the PFMA]

Disposal of movable assets must be at [book] market value or by tender or auction,
whichever is most advantageous to the state, unless determined otherwise by the reievant
lreasury. '

Any sale of immovable slate property must be at market value, unless the relevant
treasury approves otherwise.

The ietting of immovable state property (excluding state housing for officials) must be at
market-related tariffs, unless the relevant treasury approves otherwise. No state propenty
may be let free of charge without the prior approval of the relevant treasury.

The accounting officer must review, at least annually when finalising the budget, all fees,
charges, rales, tariffs or scales of fees or other charges relating 1o the letting of state
property to ensure sound financial planning and management.

Assets accrulng to the state by operation of any law [Section 76(2)(})
of the PFMA]

Where any money, property or right accrues to the state by operation of law (bona
vacantia), the responsible executive authority may exercise all powess, authority and
prerogatives, and fulfil any obligation on behalf of the state,



32 No. 22141

GOVERNMENT GAZETTE, 9 M (RCH 2001

Treasury Regulations: PFAMA

11

Management of debtors

11.1
11.1.1

11.2

11.2.1

11.3
11.3.1

114

11.4.1

11.4.2

Appitcation of these Treasury Regulations

The Treasury Regulations in this chapter apply to all debts accruing to an institution and
include any amount owing to or receivable by the institution, such as [accpunts} invoices
for charges {or goods or services, fees or fines outdanding,

Responsibility for management of debtors [Section 38(1){c)() and (d)
of the PFMA]

The accounting officer of an institution must t-ke effective and appropriate steps to
collect all money due to the institwtion including, . s pecessary-

{a}) maintenance of proper accounts and recors for 21 debtors, including amounts
received in part payment; and

{b} referral of a matter to the State Altorney, -+here economical, to consider a legal
demand and possible legal proceedings in a c:wurt of law.

Recovery of debis by instaiments

Unless ptherwise determined by law or agreemert, debts owing to the state may, at the
discretion of the accounting officer of the institutir n, be recovered in instalments.

Writing off of debts owing to the state | Sections 76(1)(e) and 76(4)a)
of the PFMA]

An accounting officer must only write off a delt if he or she is satisfied [Any debt
written off by the accounting officer must] thai-

{2} {only be written off after] ail reasonable ste;)s have been taken to recover the debt,
in accordance with a policy determined by the accounting officer, [and]

{b) _[the accounting officer] he ot she has convir :ed himself/herself that—
{1} recovery of the debt would be uneconom cal;
(i) recovery would cause undue hardship to he debtor or his/er dependants; and

(iii} it would be to the advantage of the state io effect a settlement of its claim or o
waive the claim.

All debis written off must be disclosed in the anmial financial statements, indicating the

11.5
1L.5.1

palicy in terms of which the debt was written off.

Interest payable on debts to the state [$.ection BO of the PFMA]

Interest must be charged on all debis to the state a the interest rate provided {ar in terms
of section 80 of the Act,
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Management of losses and claims

121
1211

1212

12.2

12.2.1

12.2.2

12.2.3

General

Subject 10 the provisions of these Treasury Regulations, or any other legisiation or
agreement, the stale will bear its own damages and accident risks and be responsible for
all claims and losses of state property where these arise from state activities by an official
who is liable in law and who is or was employed by an instilution to which these
Treasury Regulations apply.

Notwithstanding the above paragraph, the accounting officer of an institution may (if
deemed economical and based on 2 risk assessment) insure motor vehicles or such other
movable assets determined by the relevant treasury, but the insurance premium cost may

not exceed R250 000 a year on that vole, unless otherwise approved by the relevant
freasury.

Claims against the state through acts or omissions {Section 76(1)(h)
of the PFMA]

An institution [may] must accept liability for any loss or damage suffered by another
person, as for a claim against the state, which arose from an act or omission of an
official, provided-

{a) the act or omission was the cause of the loss, damage or reason for the claim;

(b) the act or omission did not involve the use of alcohol or drugs;

{c} the official acted in the course of his or her erploymeny;

(d) the official did not fail to comply with ar ignore standing instructions, of which he
or she was aware of or could reasonably have been aware of, which led to the loss,

damage or reason for the claim, excluding fosses and damages arising from the use
of a state vehicle; and

{e) in the case of z loss, damage or elaim arising from the use of a state vehicle, the
official-

(i) used the vehicle with aulhorisation for official purposes;

(i) possesses a valid driver's licence or other appropriste licence;

{iii} used the vehicle in the interest of the state;

(iv) did not aliow unauthorised persons 1o handle the vehicle;

(v) did not deviate materially from the official joumey or route without prior
authorisation; and

{vi) did not, without prior consultation with the State Attorney, make an admission
that was detrimental to the state.

If in doubt, the accounting officer of the institution must consult the State Attorney on
questions of law on the implementation of paragraph 12.2.1.

Except when an institution has accepted liability in terms of paragraph 12.2.1, an amount
paid by the institution for losses, damages or claims arising from an act or omission of an
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12.2.4

12.3
12.3.1

124
12.4.1

12,5

12.5.1

12.5.2

12.5.3

official must be recovered from the official concerned if the official is liable in law to
compensate the institulion,

The State Attorney may only obligate the Funds o: an institution with the prior written
approval of the accounting officer.

Claims by the state against other persons

If the state suifers a loss or damage and the other p2rson denies lability, the accounting

officer must, if deemed ecanomical, refer the meiter to the State Autorney for legal
action.

Claims by officials against the state

If an official sustains a loss or damage in the ex-cution of official duties and is not

compensated, the accounting officer may make go-d the loss or damage provided that
the official can prove such loss or damage.

Losses or damages through criminal acts or omisslons
[Section 76{(1){f} of the PFMA]

When it appears that the state has suffered losses or damages through criminal acts or
possible criminal acts, the matter must be reported, in writing, to the accounting officer
and the South African Police Service. In the case of omissions, the matter mus! be
reported, in writing, to the accounting officer. Whether or not the person is still in the
employ of the state, the accounting officer must recuver the value of the loss or damage
from the person responsible.

The accounting officer may write off and disclo.e losses or damages arising from
criminal acts or omissions if, after a thorough inve: tigation, it is found that the loss or
damage is irrecoverable.

In the event of movable asseis being written off, apropriate notations must be made in

12.8

12.6.1

12.7

1271

12.7.2

12.7.3

the asset register.

.osses and damages through vis major i-nd other unavoidabie
causes [Section 76(1){e) of the PFMA]

The accounting officer may write off losses and dam-ages that resull from vis major and
cther unavoidable causes,

Recovery of losses and damages [Sectior s 76(1)(b) and 76{4)(a} of the
PFMA] '

Losses or damages suffered by an institution because of an act commitied or omitted by
an official, must be recovered from such an official it he or she is liable in law.

The accounting officer must determine the asnount o: the loss or damage and, in writing,
request that official 1o pay the amount within 30 day- or in reasonable insialments. If the
official fails to comply with the request, the matter n.ust be handed to the State Attomey
for the recovery of the loss or damage.

A claim against an official [may] must be waived if the conditions in paragraph 12.2.1(b}
lo {e) are met.
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If in doubt, the accounting officer of the institution must consult the State Attorney on
questions of law in the implementation of paragraphs 12.7.1 and 12.7.3.
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13

Loans, guarantees
and other commitments

1341
13.11

13.1.2

13.1.3

13.1.4

13.1.5

13.2
13.2.1

General {Section 66 of the PFMA]

‘The executive authority of a provincial departmen’ may not issue a guarantee, security or
indernnity that may bind the provincial revenue fund, except with the prior written
approval of the relevant MEC for finance.

The accounting officer of a department must ensus 2 that no official in that departmenit or
any other person borrows money on behalf of that department, or issues an unauthorised
guarantee, security o indemnity. The accounting officer must ensure that misconduct
and caiminal proceedings are instituted against any person responsible for transgressions
with regard 10 borrowings, guarantees, securities o indemnities.

Should the accounting officer be responsible for transgressions with regard to
bosrowings, guarantees, securities or indemnities, the treasury must initiate misconduct

and criminal proceedings against the accounting oificer as soon as it becomes aware of
the transgression.

The accounting officer must report on ail contingent liabilities of his or her department in
its annual report.

The provisions in this chapter do not preclude the use of credit cards, fleet management
cards or other credit facilities repayable within 30 ¢ 2ys from the date of statement,

Provinces

The MEC for finance may raise funds during a fir.ancial year for bridging purposes. All
bridging finance raised during a financial year nu st be repaid within 30 days after the
end of the financial year.
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Money and property held in trust

14.1
14.1.1

14,2

14.2.1

142.2

14.2.3

14.3
14.3.1

14.4
14.4.1

14.4.2

General

The provisions of Chapter 15 are not applicable t2 the management of trust money.

Re:ﬁ%nslbility for trust money and property [Saction 76(1)(c) of the
PF

For purposes of these Treasury Regulations, trust money or property is money or .

property that does not belong 1o the State and which is held by an institution on behalf of
other persons or entities in terms of a deed of trust or equivalent instrument that detajls
the specific purposes for which it may be used,

The accounting officer, through the chief financial officer or a duly authorised agent, is
cesponsible for the safekeeping and proper use of trust money and property, in
accordance with the relevant deed of 1rust or equivalent instrument,

The institution, or its duly authorised agent, may charge a fee for the administration of a
trust account at rates approved by the board of trustees or, int its absence, as agreed with

the trustee. [by the relevant treasury.] Such fees shall be payable from the trust account
and are revenue accruing to the relevant revenue fund.

Trust money must be kept in a trust account

The accounting officer must, for each separate portion of trust money-
{a} open and maintain a separate bank account, called a trust account;
{b) assign the trust account a name or title that clearly identifies the account;

{c) maintain separate accounting records for each trust account, of the transactions,
including investment transactions, undertaken; and

(d) annually prepare separate financial statements in accordance with paragraph 18.4.

investment of trust money

The accounting officer may, providead that it does not conflict with the terms of the trust

arrangement, invest any bust money on such lemns and conditions as may seem

appropriate—

{a) on deposit with any bank within or outside South Africa as approved by the
[national} National Treasury;

(b} in public securities issued by the government; or

{c) in other securities approved by the {national} Nationat Treasury.

The proceeds of an investment, including interest and reatised capital gains, and all

money recejved from the realisation, sale or conversion of securities, shall be ireated 2s
money of the irust on whose behalf the money was invested.
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15

Banking, cash management
and investment

15.1
15.1.1

15.1.2

15.1.3

15.2
15.2.1

1522

15.2.3

Control of the national and provinclal revenue funds [Sections 11 and
21 of the PFMA] K

Each treasury is responsible for the effective and efficienl management of its reveaue
fund,

Each treasury musi ensure that {the] its revenue fund fat all times} has sufficient money

at all times for appropriated expenditure and direct chatges to meet the progressive cash
flow requirements,

Each revenve fund consists, at any point in time, of all cash balances of the fund, derived
from the relevant treasury’s operating, investing and financing activities.

Bank account configuration {Sections 7 and 21 of the PFMA)

The bank account configuration for the National Revenue Fund comprises an Exchequer
bank account, a Paymaster-General bank account with the South African Reserve Bank,
the four tax and loan accounts with commercial banks, and any other bank account
opened to facilitate the management of the National Revenue Fund. The [national]

National Treasury may open sdditional accounts on such terms and conditions as it may
determine,

Each provincial revenue fund must have a bank account configuration that consists of at

least an Exchequer bank account and a Paymaster-General benk account, opened with a
commercial bank.

Each head of a provincial treasury must nominate one bank account under the control of

the provingial treasusy, and which is part of the Provincial Revenue Fund as the account
to which all transfers from national departments must be deposited. This is 1o be
cenified to the Nattonal Treasury by 1 April 2001.

15,2.[3]_41 If the accounting for 3 department necessitates a separate bank account, the relevant

15.3
15.3.1

15.3.2

treasury may approve one subaccount within the Paymaster-General account of the
relevant revenue fund. Such subaccounts remain an integral part of the bank account
configuration of the relevant revenue fund,

Deposits into the revenue funds [Sections 13 and 22 of the PFMA]

In terms of sections 11(3) and 21(2) of the Act, money is paid into a revenue fund by
depositing it into a bank account in accordance with the configuration requirements
prescribed above,

Money depusited into the Paymaster-General account must immediately be available 1o
the relevant treasury for funding expenditure or investment according to its central cash
managernent responsibilities,
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15.4

15.4.1

15.42

15.5
15.5.1

i53.2

-

Responsibilities of the South African Re venue Service [Section 12 of
the PFMA]

The South African Revenue Service must supply the relevant treasury with an annua)
revenue projection no later than the 10th working d 1y of March preceding the start of the

financial year. It must also submit an updated monthly revenue projection for the
remainder of the year, no later than the 15th workin{ day of each month.

For purpases of section 12 of the Act, the Scuth African Revenue Service must
smplement measures to ensure that all taxes, levies duties, fees and other money due (o
and collected by it for a revenue fund are accowr ted fe. ...d deposited daily inlo the

relevant fund, The relevant freasury must be infi rmed daily of such revenue and its
standard revenue classifications.

Responsibilities of departments [Sectior 5 13 and 22 of the PFMA] -

All revenue received by a department must be puid daily inlo its Paymaster-General
account or, for amounts less than R500, as soon e practicable, but at least by the [ast
working day of the month, {This révenue must be 1aid into the relevant revenue fund
by the last working day of the month,] .

No provincial department may receive any wansfer from a national department or public

entily directly; such funds must be deposited into e nominated banking account of the
province as required by paragraph 15.2.3,

15.5.12]3 Money collected by a department, which is nof cle sified as revenue, must be paid irto

15.6

1561

15.7
15.7.1

13.7.2

15.8
15.8.1

the department’s Paymaster-General account and accounted for in its fedger. This
includes money received for agency services providad 1o another department.

Withdrawals tram and investments In reenue funds [Sections 7(4)
and 24(3) of the PFMA]

Provincial treasuries may, in accordance with sect.on 24 of the Act, temporarily invest
surplus money in the provincial revenue fund in an account in South Africa, approved as
part of the bank account configuration of the fund.

Requisitioning of funds by departments. laglsiatures and Parliament

When requesting the transfer of approprialed fu ids, accounting officers of national
departments, provincial legislatures and Parliamen! must submit such requisitions to the
inationall National Treasury, in accordance with ¢ aproved cash flow estimates, at least
four full working days before the end of the mon h preceding the month in which the
funds are required. Provincial treasuries may det rmine their own time-scales in this
regard,

Provincial treasuries will receive their grams from the National Revenve Fund in
accordance with the payment schedule determine: in terms of the annual Division of
Revenue Act,

" Surrender of voted surplus funds

At the end of each financial year, and after the books of account of an institution,
including Parliament and provincial legislatures | department] have been closed, the
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15.9
15.9.1

[159.2

15.10
15.10.1
15.10.1.1

15.10.1.2

[15.10.2
13.10.2.1

15.10.2.2

FPart 6: Framewarks

-

accounting officer must surrender 1o the relevant treasury any unexpended voted money,
for re-depositing into the Exchequer bank account of the relevant revenue fund.

Accounting and reporting

Each treasury must accoumt daily for the cash movements of all bank accounts in the
books of its revenue fund.

Every month, each treasury must report on its revenue fund to the Minister or
MEC for finance.]

Banking and cash managsment
General [Sections 7 and 21 of the PFMA)

The accounting officer, through the chief financial officer,] is responsible for

establishing systems, procedures, processes and training and awareness programmes to
ensure efficient and effective banking and cash management,

For purposes of these Treastry Regulations, sound cash management includes—

{a) collecting revenue when it is due and banking it promptly;

(b} making payments, including transfers to other levels of government and non-
government entities, no earlier than necessary, with due regard for efficient,
effective and economical programme delivery and the government's normal terms
for account payments; |

(c} avoiding prepayments for goods or services (i.e. payments in advance of the
receipt of the goods or services), unless required by the contraciual arrangements
with the supplier;

{d) accepting discounts to effect early payment only when the payment has been
included in the monthly cash flow estimates provided to the relevant treasury;

{e) pursuing debtors with appropriate sensitivity and rigour to ensure that amounts
receivable by the government are collected and banked promptly:

{f) accurately forecasting the institution’s cash flow requirements so that the national
Treasury can optimise its central cash management responsibilities on behalf of the
govermment;

{g) timing the in- and outflow of cash;

{h) recognising the time value of money, i.e. economically, efficiently and effectively
managing cash; and

(i) taking amy other action that avoids locking up money unnecessarily and
inefficiently, such as managing invenfories to the minimum level necessary for
efficient and effective programme delivery, and selling surptus or underutilised
assets.]

Systems, accounting records, procedures and monitoring

The chief financial officer must ensure that the institution's systems, records and
statements of procedures can reet the purposes of sound cash management.

The chief financial officer must monitor the institution's cash mana.gemcnt
performance on a regular basis and report to the accounting officer, in writing, at
least monthly.]

———
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15.10.[31.2 Banking arrangements [Section 7(2) of the PFMA]

15.10.[312.1 Institutions may not open a bank account wihout the written approval of the relevant

15.10.2.2

treasury fand previous approvals continu¢ to apply unless revoked.] Previous
approvals will cease after 30 Aprit 2001.

National Treasury will negotiate with the ajproved Clearing banks for a banking

15.11
i5.11.1

1511.2

*154L3

15.12

15121

15.12.2

15.12.3

15.12.4

15,125

service on an annual basis.

Private money, private bank accoun 3 and cashing private cheques

Private money may not be deposited into an of icial bank account, excepl in accordance
with the provisions relating to money held in t ust for other persons or bodies, nor may
state money be paid into a private bank accoun .

The safekeeping of private money or personal jossessions in a state safe or strongroom
is prohibited, However, an accoumting off ter or an official authorised by the
accounting officer may approve arrangeme stz for safeguarding personal effects
reasonably held on official premises in the co urse of official duty {e.g. by providing
lockable rooms for staff).

State money may not be used to cash private ct zques.

Warrant vouchers, cheques and elec ironic payments
[Section 76(2)(h) of the PFMA]

Accounting officers of departments must ass gn authority in writing to officials to
approve warrant vouchers, cheques or electroni : payments.

Only authorised officials may sign hand-drawn vouchers or cheques and must initial the
counterfoils.

All payments in excess of R[10]2 000 musi be effected electronically unless otherwise
approved by the relevant treasury.

All warrant vouchers and cheques [must have at least a} should preferably be crossed
fing of] “NOT [NEGOTIABLE] TRANSFI RABLE” between parallel lines. The
cancellation of [such 8] crossings is not permiti »d.

When an issued warrant voucher or cheque is [ fst. stofen or damaged, an instruction to
stop payment must immediately be issued to ¢ ie responsible bank. Once confimation
has been received that the cheque was stopped. the transaction must be reversed and a
new warrant youcher or cheque issued and acec inted for.
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Public-private partnerships

16.1  Definitions

“affordable”, in relation to a public-private partnership (PPP) agreement, means that the financial
commitments {o be incurred by an institution in terms of the agreement can be met by funds--

(a) designated within the institution’s existing budget for the institutional function to
which the agreement relates; and

{b) destined for ihe institution in accordance with the relevant treasury's Tuture
budgetary projections for the institution,

“Institutional function” means—

(a) a service, task, assignment or other function that an institution performs—
(i) in the public interest; or
(i) on behalf of the public service generally; or

{b) any part or component of, or in support of, such a service, task, assignraent or ather
functicn;

(c) but excludes a service, task, assignment or other function that is not of an ongoing
nature.

“net cost”, in relation to an institutional function, means the full accounting cost of performing the

function, less any charges or fees collected from users and from consumers for services provided
to them in performing the function.

“private party”, in relation to a PPP agreement, means a party 1o a PPP agreement other than-
{a} an institution to which the Act applies;
{b! a municipality or an enterprise or other entity conwolied by one or more
municipalities; of
(c) 1he accouming officer, accounting authority or cther person or body acting on behaif
of an instilution, municipality, enterprise or entity referred to in paragraph {a) or {(b).
“public-private partnership agreement” means an agieement between an institution and a
private party in terms of which-
{a) the private party undertakes 10 perform an institutional function on behali of the
institution far a specified or indefinite time;
{b) the private party receives a benefit for performing the function, either by way of:
(i) compensation from a revenue fund;

(i) charges or fees collected by the private party from users or customers of a
service provided o them; or

(iii) a combination of such compensation and such charges or fees;

(¢} the private party is generally liable for the risks arising from the performarce of the
function, subject to paragraph 16.13.1; and

(@ depending on the specifics of the agreement, state facilities, equipment or other state
resources may be transferred or made available to the private party.

The definition excludes an agreement or category of agreements exempled by the
[national] Nationai Treasury in terms of clause 16.12.
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“public sector comparator™ means an estimate of the n 4 cost of perferming an institutional

function in accordance with methods employed and sulject to conditions prevailing at the
{nstitution concerned.

“value for money” means that the provision of the instit tional function by a private pariy in
terms of the public-private parinership agreement results in - net benefit to the institution, defined
in terms of cost, price, quality, quantity, or risk iransfer, or a 2ombination thereof,

[18.2 General responsibilities ot accounting «fficers

16.2.1  The accounting officer is responsible for ensuriiig that the institution complies with

these Treasury Regulations and, to this ent’, for implementing systems and
procedures that-

{a) are open, competitive and transparent; and

(b) provide safeguards against favouritism, i proper practices and opportunities
for fraud, theft and corruption.}

18.[3]2 Exclusive competency of accounting of ficers

16.{3]2.1 Only an accounting officer may enter intc a PPP ag reement on behalf of the institution.

16.[413 Treasury approval

16.14]3.1 The accounting officer may not enter into a PPE agreement without the prior written
apptoval of-

(a} the [national] National Treasury; or
(b} the relevant provincial treasury, if it is a prc vincial institution and the [national]

National Treasury has, in terms of section 10(1){h of the Act, delegated the
appropriate powers 1o the provincial treasury.

16.[4)3.2 The relevant treasury may give such approval only if it is satisfied that the proposed PPP
- agreement will—
{a) provide value for money;
{b} be affordable for the institution; and
(¢} transfer appropriate technical, operational and /inancial risk to the private party.

16.[4]3.3 When a provincial treasuty gives such approval, { must exercise its delegated powers
subject to any limitations and qualifications & terms of the [national] National
Treasury’s delegation.

16.[5]4 Feasibility analysis

16.[514.1 To determine whether a proposed PPP agreement i : in the best interests of an institution,
the accounting officer must prepare a feasibility an lysis that—
{a} explains the strategic and operational bent fits of the PPP agreement for the
institution in terms of the institution's strategic objectives and government policy;
{b) describes in specific terms—
(i} the nature of the institutional function corcerned;

{i) the extent to which this function, both [e ally and by nature, can be performed
by a private perty in terms of a PPP agree nent; and
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(il what other forms of PPP agreement were considered, and how the proposed
form was selected,;
(c} assesses whether the agreement will—
) provide value for money:
(i) be affordable for the institution; and
{iii} transfer appropriate technical, operationat and financial risk (o the private party.
(d) inciudes any relevant information, figures and the economic criteria used to justify
these assessments: and

(e} explains the capacity of the institution lo effectively enforce the agreement,

including to moniter and regulate implementation of and performance in terms of
the agreement.

16.[514.21f an institution Jacks the expertise 1o assess value for meney and affordability or to
interpret any PPP agreement offered 1o it by a private party, the accounting officer of the
institution—
(a) must inform the relevant treasury accordingly; and
(b) if the relevant treasury so requests, must appoint 2 specialist consuitant for this
purpose.

16.[6]5 Submission to obtain treasury approval

16.16]5. 1 If the feasibility analysis indicates that a PPP agreement will be in the best interests of
the institulion, and the institution intends to procure the agreement, the accounting
officer must apply for approval from the relevant treasury in terms of clause 16.4.
16.16}5.2 The application must be accompanied by the feasibility analysis, submitted in the
following format-
(a) Part I should containr a brief “sector needs analysis” and priority ranking of the PPP
agreement being proposed on the basis of this analysis;
{(b) Part TI should demonstrate vatue for money, affordability, and risk transfer; and
{c) Pars UI should contain the main terms of the proposed agreement to be signed with

the private party and the institutional arrangements for monitoring and enforcing
these terms.

16.[7]6 Procurement [Section 76(4) of the PFMA]

16.{716.1 An institution may not proceed with the procurement of a PPP agreement unless it has
oblained written treasury approval in terms of clause 16.4.

16.{7]6.2 A PPP agreement must be procured in accordance with applicable procurement
legisiation.

16.1716.3 The pracurement procedure must include~
(a) an open and transparent pre-qualification process;
(b} a competitive bidding process in which only pre-qualified crganisations may
participate; and
{c} criteria for the evaluation of bids 1o ideniify the bid that represents the best value for
money.

16.{7)6.4 The procurement procedure may inciude—
(a} a preference for categories of bidders, such as persons disadvantaged by unfair
discrimination, provided that this does not compromise the value for money
requiretnent; and
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(b} incentives for recognising and rewarding ;enuine innovators in the case of

unsclicited proposals, provided that these ncentives do not compromise the
competitive bidding process.

16.[8]7 Contracting public-private partnership a jreements

16.[817.1 Before the accounting officer of an institution enfors into a PPP agreement, he or she
must— ’

{a) obtain relevant treasury lapproval]l agreemnt to future ffor alll budgetary
commitments; and

{b) ensure that the financial commitments in terms of the agreement:
(i} are denominated in rand; 2nd

(i) will not be affected by fluctuations in he value of the rand against other
currencies,

16.[918 Management of public-private partnersh.p agreements
16.1918.1 The accounting officer is responsible for ensurin that a PPP agreement is properly
enforced, and must establish mechanisms and proce iures for—

(a) monitoring and regulating the implementation of, and performance in terms of, the
agreement;

(b) liatsing with the private party; ,
{c) resolving disputes and differences with the prir ate party; and
(d) generally overseeing the day-to-day manageme nt of the agreement.
16.[9]8.2 A PPP agreement does not divest the accounting of. icer of the responsibility for ensuring

that the relevant institutional function is effectiv ly and efficiently performed in the
public interest,

16.[1019 Amendment of public-private partnerstip agreements
16.[1019.1 | Qnly the accounting officer may enter into an ag ‘eement to amend a PPP agreement.

16.{10]9.2 Writien approval of the relevant treasury is required for material amendments of PPP
agreemenls.

16.11019.3 The relevant treasury will approve an amend nent only if i is satisfied that the
amended PPP agreement will—
{a} provide value for money;
(b} be affordable for the institution; and .
{¢) transfer appropriate technical, operational and inancial risk 1o the private party.
i
16.{10]9.4 The accounting officer must substantially follov: the procedure prescribed by clauses
16.15]4 and 16.[6]5 for obtaining treasury approval.
y
16.[11110 Certain agreements not binding on ths state
16.[11]10.1 A PPP agreement or an agreement amending a I'EP agreement does not bind the state
if the agreement was entered into on behalf of an imtitution~
{a) by aperson other than the accounting officer ¢ the institution; or
(b) without the approval of the [national] Nationa: Treasury.
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[16.12 Exemptions

16.12.1 The national Treasury may exempt from the mpplication of these Treasury
Regulations any agreement or category of agreements that fall within the definltion
of “public-private partnership agreement”, if.these are of a nature or have a
monetary value deemed not to warrant treasury control.)

16.[13]11 General

16.[13111.1 An agreement between an institution and a privale party for the latter to perform an
institutional function withaut accepting the significant risks is not 2 PPP agreement and
must be dealt with as a borrowing transaction in terms of the apptopriate legislation,
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17

Basic accounting records
and related issues

17.1
17.1.1

17.1.2

17.1.3

Use of Icontroll suspense accounts [Section 40(1)(a) of the PEMA]}

All the transactions of an institution must be supported by authentic and verifiable source
documents, clearly indicating the approved accounting allocation.

Should it be necessary, in exceptional cases, to account for revenue and expenditure
transactions in a control account because the classification has not been resolved, the
accounting officer, or his or her designate, must ensure that—

{a) the sources of the transactions are readily identifiable;

{b) amounts included in the control accounts are, each month, cleared and correctly
atlocated to the relevant cost centres;

{c} monthly reconciliations are performed to confinm the balance of sach account; and

(d) reports are provided to the [chief financial officer] accounting officer _about
uncleared items on a monthly basis,

In _each months section 40(4) report, the accounting officer must certify that the

17.2
17.23

17.2.2

17.2.3

forecast/projeciion for the remainder of the financial year includes adequate allowance
for afl amounts not yet cleared from suspense accounts. :

Availahility of tinancial information [Section 40(1)(a) of the PFMA]

Accourding officers of institutions must, subject to the provisions of the National

Archives of South Africa Act, 1996 (No. 43 of 1996), retain gff financial information in

its original form, as foliows—

(a) information relating to one financial year — for one year after the audit report for the
financial year in question has been tabled in Pariiament or the provincial legislature;
ar .

(b} information refating to more-than one financial year — for one year after the date of
the audit report for the last of the financial years to which the information relates.

After the expiry of the above retention periods, the information may, if required, be
secured in an alternative form that ensures the integrity and reliability of the data and
ensures that the information can be reproduced, if necessary, as permissible evidence ina
court of law.

Irrespective of paragraph 17.2.1, the following standards apply to the retention of certain
types of record—
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17.2.4

17.3
1731

Type of record

Number of years after which
racords can be dispesad of

Ganeral ledger and cash books or similar records

15

Main transaction summary records, including general jot.rmals
and transaction summaries

Internal audit reparts
System appraisals

10

Primary evidentiary records, including copies of forms is:ued
for vaiue, vouchers to support payments made, pay shet.ts,
returned warant vouchers or chaques, invaices and sim' ar
racords assoclated with the receipt or payment of money

Subsidiary ledgers, including inventory cards and record:
relating to assets no longer held or liabilities that have been
discharged

Supplemaentary accounting records, including, for exampis,
cash register strips, bank statamants and time sheets

General and incidental sourca documents not inctuded 3-iove.
including stock issue and receivable notes, coples of offi.ial
orders (other than the copies used to substantiate paymt nts of
for unperformed contracts), bank deposit books and pos
registers :

When financial information is required as evidei.ce in proceedings before a court,
Parliament, a provincial legislature, an official inqui'y or otherwise, or for purposes of an
audit, it must be secured in its then current form «ntil no longer required, even if the

national Archivist has authorised its disposal.

Changes to financlal systems

Institutions may not amend existing or instilute raw computerised systems thal will
affect financial administration without [first con ulting] the prior approval of the

[national] National Treasury.
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Monthly and annual reports

18.1
18.1.1

18.1.2

18.1.3

18.1.4

18.2
18.2.1

18.2.2

Cash flow [Section 40(4)(a) of the PFMA]

The accounting officer must annually submit to the relevant treasury a breakdown of

anticipated revenue and expenditure in the format determined by the [national] National

Treasury, no later than the last working day of February preceding the financial year to
which it refates.

Provi.ncEaI treasuries must submit fo the [national] National Treasury by the 15th
working day of [February] March, projections of their expenditute, revenue and
borrowings, in a format determined by the [national] National Treasury.

Once such amounts have been approved, modified as necessary after consultation with
the relevant treasury, the accounting officer may not draw from the revenue fund more

than the amount approved for a month, without prior written approval from the relevant
treasury.

If the accounting officer deems it necessary 10 adjusi the approved projections, the
proposed adjustments must be motivated to the relevant treasury for evaluation against
the availability of funds in the Exchequer.

Monthly reports {Sections 32(2) and 40(4}(b) and (c) of the PFMA]

In terms of subsections 40(4) (b} and {c) of the Act, the accounting officer must submit to
the relevant treasury and executive authority within 15 days of the end of each month,
information on—

(a) the actual revenue and expenditure for that month, in the format determined by the
[nationat] National Treasury;

(b) estimated expenditure against any transfers to public or private entities, where such
transfers are for departmental programmes;

{c) on requirements in terms of the Anmnual Division of Revenue Act, including
expenditure information on all conditional grants up to the end of that month;
Provided that national accounting officers responsible for such grants may, with the
approval of the treasury, submit these reports on the 20" day after the end of each
month;

{lb}d) projections of anticipated expenditure and revenue for the remainder of the

“current financial year in the format determined by the [national] National Treasury;
and

{Icle}  any material variances and a summary of {actions} appropriate steps to be
taken to ensure that the projected expenditure and revenue remain within the budges.

A provincial treasury must submit a statement to the [national] National Treasury on
actual revenue and expenditure with regard 1o its revenue fund before the 22nd day of
each month in the format determined by the [national] National Treasury. Such 2
statement must include a certificate to the effect thar the information supplied has been
verified by the head official of the provircial treasury._The information supplied must be
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based on_information submitted to the provinciai treasury by provineial accounting
officers in terms of section 40(4) (¢} of the Act,

(18.3 Quarterly reports

18.3.1  Information on division of revenue grants must be reported in terms the annual

Division of Revenue Act,

18.3.2  The accounting officer effecting transfer paymcnts must submit a report to the

relevant {reasury within 15 days after every quarter, autlining per organisation all
the funds transferred up to the end of that quarter ]

18.[4]3 Annual financial statements [Section[s] 40(1)(b) [and 90{3)(3)] of the
PFEMA] : '

18.[413.1For the financial year ending 31 March 2001, the following reporiing standards
[comprise generaily recognised accounting practice and] must be adhered to, unless
otherwise approved by the [national) Nationa) Treasury—

Reporting entity Ganerally recognised accounting pre stice

National and provincial Annual financial slatements must consist of—

revenue funds {a) a staternent of lizbilities and finanially related assets:
(&) anincome stalement;

(c} acash fiow statement;

(d} notes to the annual financlal state vents;

{e) a repoit on the fnancial position of and performance by the Treasury;
and

{1 such other statements as may be datermined by the Accounting
Standards Board,

The annual tinanclal statements must | 8 préparad on a cash basis and must
be accomparied by the audit opinion of he Auditor-General.

The anmyal financial statemants must, 2y means cof figures and a descriptive
report, explain any cther matters and irformatiori matarial to tha alfairs of the

ralavant ravenue fund,
Departments Annural financial statements must consie. of—
Partiament {a) abalance sheet
Provincial lagislatures (b)  anincoma statement,

[¢) acash flow statement;

(d) noles to the annual financial staternents; and

{a} such other statements as may be determined by the Accounting
Standards Beard.

The statements must be prapared on a -ash basls and be accompanied by the

audit cpinion of the Auditor-Genarai.

The annual financial statements must, ny means of figures and a dqscriptive
rapart, explain any other matters and Ir ‘'ormation material to the affairs of the
insfitution. .

Trading entities Armual firanclat statements must consie” of—

Cangtitutional institutions | (@) & balanca sheet;

(b} an income statement;

{c) a cash flow statemant;

(d} notes to the annual financial statements; and

(8) such other statemants as may be determined by the Accounting
Standards Board.
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The annual linancial statements must be accompanied by the audi opinion of

the Auditor-General, [or the relesvant auditor (in the case of publie
entitles).]

{Unleas otherwlse approved by the natlonal Treesury, The annual financial
statements muzt, [In]l conform [y] with [@lgeraraty [Alaccepted
lAJaccounting [Plpractice  [issued by the South African Instituts of
Chartered Accountants.] These statements must fairly represent the

tinancial position, financial performance and cash tiows of the institution at the
end of the financia) year concemed,

The annual financial stataments must, by means of ligures and a descriplive

report, explain any other matters and information materfal to the afairs of the
institution.

18.[5]4 Contents of annual reports [Section 40(1)(d) of the PFMA and Section
19 of DORA]

18.§5]4.1 In preparing the annual report of 2n institution, the accounting officer musi~

{a) in the case of 2 department or trading entity, comply with the requirements
prescribed in Chapter 1, Pact Il J of the Public Service Regulations, [1999]2001;

(b} include, after 1 April 2002, information about the institution’s efficiency, economy
and effectiveness in delivering programmes and achieving ils objectives and
outcomes against the measures and indicators set out in any strategic plan for the
year under consideration;

{c) include information an the measurement of the Institution’s performance for the past
financial year as required by Section {40(1){d}(i?] 40(3)(a) of the Act;

(@ include information on transfer payments per organisation for the entire financial
year as well 83 a report on compliance with Section 38(1}(j) of the Act;

fe) include all inforrnation required in terms of the Annual Division of Revenue Act;

(el include any additional information required by Parliament or the provincial
legislature;

(flg)  report on the use of foreign aid assistance, detailing the source and intended use
of the assistance (including the value of any aid-inXind in rand), performance
information on the institution's use of the assistance, and any pending applications
for assistance; and

({gly)  a repon from the audit committee commenting on the effectiveness of internal
coniro! in the institution, a5 required by pavagraph {4.2.14] 3.1.10,

18.[6]5 Additional annual reporting requirements for departments
~ controlling trading entities and public entities

18.[615.1 A department’s annual report must include a list of trading and/or public entities
" controlled by the department, together with-
(3} an indication of the legislation under which the trading and/or public eatity was
established;
(b) a statement of the functions of each trading and/or public entity; {end]
(c) the accountability arrangements established between the accounting officer and the
management of the trading and/or public entity;and

{d} a report of expenditure against iransfers 1o public entities, where such f.ur'ldls were for
the performance of a function or programme thai is the responsibility of the

department,




54 No. 22141

GOVERNMENT GAZETTE, 9 MARCH 2001

PART 8

‘Miscellaneous



STAATSKOERANT, 9 MAART 2001 No, 22144

55

Fart 8: Miscellanegus

19

Trading entities

18.1

Definitions [Section 76(4)(b) of the PFMA]

“hezd of the trading entity” refers to either—

19.2
19.2.]

1922

19.2.3

18.3
19.3.1

19.3.2

19.4
19.4,1

19.5
19.5.1

19.5.2

19.5.3

(a} the accounting officer appointed in terms of section 36{3){(b} of the Act; or
(b} an official assigned to head the trading entity in terms of section 44(1)(a} of the Act.

General

For purposes of these Treasury Regulations, a trading entity is regarded as an eatity
operating within the administration of a depariment. All obligations on depariments in

these Treasury Regulations apply to trading entities, unless the context indicates
otherwise. '

The accounting officer of the department operating a (rading entity must ensure that the
head of the trading entity complies with the Act and these Treasury Regulations.

Trading eatities allowed (o open bank accounts may not borrow for bridging purposes
and may ot mua overdrafts on their banking accounts unless approved otherwise in
writing by both the accounting officer of the department and the relevant treasury.

Policy and reporting framework

The accounting officer of a department operating a trading entity must formulate a policy
and reporting framework for the head of the trading entity.

The head of the trading entity 15 accountable to the accounting officer of the department
operating that trading entity and must forward all reports or approvals required in the Act
via the accounting officer of the department.

Establishment

Provincial treasuries may only establish 2 trading entity after consultation with the
{national] National Treasury.

Capital requirements

The initial capital requirements of the trading entity must be determined in consultation
with the relevant treasury, and increases in such requirements are also subject to treasury
approval.

In determining charges for goods or services, the head of the trading entity must aim (o
recover the full cost of providing the goods or services, unless the relevant treasury
approves lower charges. :

The head must review rates for user charges at least annually before the budget, and any
tariff increases are subject to approval by the relevant treasury.
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19.7.2

19.8
19.8.1
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Disposal of assats ’

When assets are disposed of other than in the vrdinary course of the business of the
trading entity, the relevant treasury must approve he transaction.

Surrender of surplus funds

Aa accounting officer of a depantment operating 2 trading entity must, at the end of each
financial year and after books of account have beex closed, declare any surplus or deficit

to the relevant treasury. The treasury may apply such surplus to reduce any proposed
allecationt to the trading entity, or require that i1 or part of it be redeposited in the
Exchequer bank account.

Where a trading entity suffers a deficit in trding, the accounting officer of the
department operating the trading entity must inves.igate whether—

{a) the head of the trading entity [mentioned] reported any foreseeable potential over-
expenditure in [his or her] monthly reports;

(b) appropriate steps were taken to address the de.icit; and

{c) financial misconduct and criminal sanctions should be instituted if {a) and (b) above
were not adhered to.

Financlal reporting

The annual financial statements in respect of a trading entity must be compiled in
accordance with paragraph 18.4.
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20

Commissions and
Committees of Inquiry

20.1 Definitions

“‘commission” means a commission of inquiry appointed by the President ar Premier of a province
to investigate a maiter of public concern, and does aot include any penmanent commission, board,
council, committee or similar body, whether appointed pursuant to any law or otherwise.

“committee” means a commitiee of inquiry appointed by the executive authority and includes an
interdepartmental commitiee of inquiry, but does not include any permanent commission, board,
council. committee ar similar body, whether appointed pursuant to any law or otherwise,

. 1]
“non-official member” means a person whe is not an officisl member.

“official member” means a person as defined in section 8(1) of the Public Service Act, 1994
(Proclamation No. R.103 of 1994}, a member of Parliament or a judge, as well as a person
employed by a body that was established by an Act of Parfiament and that receives its funds
wholly, or in part, from the National Revenue Fund, where such a person represents the
depariment or body where he or she is employed as a member of a commission or committee.

20.2 Remuneration of members

20.2.1  An official member must receive no additional femunetation and must receive
subsistence and other allowances in accordance with his or her conditions of service.

20.2.2 A non-official member must be remunerated according to scales approved by the
[national] National Treascry,

20.2.3  Should the accounting officer deem it necessary, [after taking into account market-
related rates, the] he or she laccounting officer.} in consultation with the executive
authority, can determine such remuneration [packages after consuliing the relevant
Treasury,] provided that-

{a} the terms of reference are properly defined in terms of time and cost; and
{b) the tariffs are reasonable compared to current market tariffs.[: and)
{(c) funds are avaliable for this purpose.)

20.3 Services rendered by members during private time

20.3.1  Should the chairperson request & non-official member of 2 commission or committee ta
render services in his or her private time, other than the normal preparations for
meetings, the person may be paid an honorarium (within the budget), as determined by
the accounting officer and the executive authority. In the case of official members,
section 30 of the Public Service Act, 1994 must be complied with.
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21

Gifts, donations and
sponsorships

21.1

2111

21,1.2

21.2
21.2.1

21.2.2
21.23

21.24

2125

21.3

21.3.1

2132

21.4
21.4.1

Granting of gifts, donations and sponscrships by the state
[Section 76(1}(]) of the PFMA]

The relevant treasury may approve gifts, donations and sponsorships of state money and
other movable property in the inlerest of the state, provided that when such cash amounts
exceed R100 000, funds must first be voted by Parliament or the provincial legislature.

Accounting officers need not refer to the relevan: freasury when gifs, donations and
sponsorships in the interest of the state do not excecd R100 000 per event.

Acceptance of gifts, donations and spor sorships to the state

The accounting officer may approve the acceptanc of any gift, donation or sponsorship
to the state, whether such gifts, donations or sponso:ships are in cash or kind.

All cash gifts, donations or sponsorships must be pz'd into the relevant revenue fund.

Where it is not apparent for what purpose 2 gift donation or sponsorship should be
applied, the Minister or the MEC for finance may vecide how il must be utilised. Where
a gift is in cash, the Minister or the MEC for financ : may, notwithstanding any provision

to the contrary in any law, direct that for purposes of the Act, the gift is deemed to be
revenue aceruing to 1he revenue fund.

All gifts, donations or sponsorships received during the course of the financial year must
be disclosed as a note to the annual financial statem :nis of the institution.

Doner funding received in terms of the Reconsiuction and Development Fund Act
(No. 7 of 1994, as amended by Act No. 79 of 1998 must be dealt with as determined by
the treasury from time to time.

Glifts or [Dldonations of immovable property by or to the state
[Sections 76(1}(k) and {1} of the PFMA]

The relevant treasury’s approvai must be obtained efore institutions offer or accept any
gifts or donations of immovable property.

Institutions must submit to the relevant treasury the reasons for and the conditions under
which the gift or donation of immovable property is offered or accepted.

Identlty of donors and sponsors

When a donor or SpoRsor requests to remain anonymous, the accounting officer must
submit to the relevant treasury a certificate from both the Public Protector and the
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Auditor-General, which states that the identity of the donor or spongor has been revealed
to them, that they have noted it and have no objection.

21.4.2  The above provision in no way limils the Auditor-Generat or the Public Protector from
supptying this informalion 1o their staff, and where they deem it in the pubtic interest, 10
report on this.
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22

Payments, refunds and remissions
as an act of grace

221
22.1.1

221.2

[22.1.2

2243

2214

General [Section 76(1)()) of the PFMA]

Where no legistative authority exists, the accountin 7 officer may approve an amount of

up to R100 000 as an act of grace or favour for: {mu. st seek 2pproval from the relevant
treasury prior to-]

(a) the remission of money due to a revenue fund; : nd
(b} payments [and refunds] from a revenue fund l: s an act of grace; and]

Where more than R100 000 is involved, [seek] ‘arliament or provincial legislature
approvai must be sought by including the item separz itely in the estimates of expenditure,
[and, in the case of remissions, recouping the revenue by a payment from the
relevant vote; and
(i) R100 008 or less is involved, recouping the revenue, in the case of
remisslons, by means of & payment from the relevant vote.

The accounting officer may, however, approve ps yments, refunds and remissions as
an act of grace without reference to the relevnt treasury, provided that such
payments, refunds or remissions do not exceed R0 000 per event.]

Where there is doubt as to whether an amount may be written off as irrecoverable or
should be treated as 2 remission of grace, the relevar. wensury must make the decision.

All remissions, refunds or payments made as an act of grace during the financial year
must be disclosed as a note to the annual financial si: tements of the institution.
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23

Government payroll deductions
[1.)23.1 Definitions

“Accountant-General” means the officer of the National Treasury designated as the Accountani-
General;

{“Act"” means the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999):]

“benefit deduction” means a deduction on Persal against an employee's salary for the purpose of
facilitating the payment of a debt arising from an employee's benefits in terms of his or her
condiiions of employment or appointment, including payments in respect of a home owner's
allowznce and the motor financial scheme for senior government employees;

“colteciive agreement deduction” means a deduction on Persal against an employee's salary
arising from a collective agreement entered into by and between the State in its capacity as
employer and a union registered with the Public Service Co-ordinating Bargaining Council or such
other similar body, in accardance with applicable law;

"debt" means amounts of money owed and already payable by an employee to any person;

“deduction code” means a code issued by the Persal system 1o a person to enable that person to
deduct money from an individual on the Persal system:;

"Director-General” means the Director-General: National Treasury;

"discretionary deduction™ means a deduction on Persal againsi an employee's salary, other than a
benefit deduction, a collective agreement deduction, a State deduction and a statutory deduction;

“employee” means a person employed by or appoinied (0 a department or an executive authority,
and includes a magistrate contemplated in section 1 of the Magistrate’s Act, 1993 (Act No. 90 of
1993} and employees of constitutional institutions

"Persal" means the personne! salary system of govemment in the naticnal and provincial sphere
and includes [reference tol the system known as Persof;

"person” depending on the context, includes reference to the State or any other juristic body;

"responsible official” means an accounting officer contemplated in section 36 of the Act or such
other persons to whom that accounting officer has delegated, a function to be performed in terms
of this Treasury Regulation;

"State deduction" means a deduction on Persal against an employee's salary for the purpose of
paying a debt owed to a department or constitutional institution and which is subject to section 34
of the Basic Conditions of Employment Act 1997 (Act No 75 of 1997);
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“statutory deduction” means a deduction on Persal agaiast an employee's salary which is
required or permitted in terms of a law, court order or arbitration award.

[2.

Application

This Treasury Regulation applies to all departmenits and constitutional institutions.]

{3.]23.2 Persal Deductions

23.2.1

23.2.2

23.2.3

Subject to the provisions of paragraph (s of item 5] 23.3, no employee of a department
or constitutional institution or of any agency, canpany or consultant contracted to
operate Persal may, for the purpose of the paymen. of any debt or any other purpose,

process a discretionary deduction with effect from the date of the commencement of this
Treasury Regulation.

Before a benefit deduction, a collective agreemen deduction, a state deduction or a
statutory deduction is precessed on Persal, the respcasible official must centify that such

deduction is due and that he or she Is satisfied that n 3 portisi, of any such deduction is a
discretionary deduction.

The responsible official must, if the certification contemplated in Isub-item (2)]
paragraph 23.2.2 is in respect of an emoluments ~ttachment order issued against an
employee in terms of section 657 of the Magistrati s Court Act, 1944 (Act No 32 of
1944}, state that he or she is satisfied that

{a) the documentation presented by the judgerient creditor or his or her artomey

inter alia reflects that as contemplated in section 63J (2} of the Magistrates'
Court Act, 1944: ’

(i)  the employee concerned has in writ:ng tonsented to the issuing of the
emoluments atiached order or, in the absence of such consent, the court
has authorised that it be issued, whetier ot application or otherwise, and
such authorisation has not been suspe ded; or

{ii} that the judgement creditor or his or her attomey has first sent a
registered letter 10 the employee concerned advising him oc her of the
amount of the judgement debt and ¢osts as yet unpaid and waming him
of Rer that an emoluments attachment order will be issued if the said
amount is not paid within ten days of the date on which that registered
letter was posted;

{b) after satisfaction of the emoluments attachizient order, the employee concerned
will have sufficient means for his or her own and his or her dependant's
maintenance: Provided that if the responsitile official's assessment reflects that
after satisfaction of the emolumenis attachraent order, the concerned employce
will not have sufficient means for his or her own or his o her dependant's
maintenance, he or she must ensure that the judgement creditor or his or her
attorney is 5o advised and requested to inform the court in order that the court
either rescind the emoluments attachment crder or amend it in such a way that
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23.3

it will affect anly the balance or the emoluments of the employee concemned
over and above such sufficient means.

The granting of deduction codes

233.1

Subjees to paragraphs 23.2.1 and 23.3.2, a deduclion code issued to any person for a

23.3.2

discretionary deduction continues in force untit 30 Jupe 2001,

Despite anything to the contrary contained in these regulations, a person may apply for a

2333

deduction code in respect of a discretionary deduction,

A person applying for a deduction code must, in the application cerlify that;

23.3.4

{a) such a person is registered with the Financial Services Board,
bl such a person will not allow access to the code to third padies, including
brokers;

{c) such persan consenis {o entering into an agreement with the Accountant-
General, which is subject to renewal annually;

(d such person consents to the oversight of the Financial Services Board and the
National Treasury in the monitoring of such person’s compliance with the
terms of the agreement contemplated in {c) and the provisions of these

(e) such person is in good standing with the South African Revenue Services and
will provide the Accountani-General with proof of such good standing
annually.

A fee or levy not exceeding 2,5 per cent of each deduction must be charged and the

23.3.5

amount so collected must be paid into the relevant revenue fund.

The Mational Treasury may, in respect of a discretionary deduction for the payment of a

23,36

loan, determine the maximum loan period, maximum loan amount and the interest rate
ta be charged on such loan, and such determination must be regarded as forming part of
the agreement contemplated in paragraph 23.3.3 ().

Discretionary deductions may not exceed 40 per cent of the basic salacy of an employes:

23.3.7

Provided that;

{a) deductions for the payment of insurance premiums do not exceed 15 per cent of
the basic salary of an employee;

{b) other discretionary deductions may constitute an amount not exceeding 25 per
cent of the basic salary of an employee,

The Minister of Finance reserves the right to determine the number of deduction codes

on the Persal system.
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[4.]123. 4 [Non-compllance with this Treasury Regulation constituting

23.4.1

23.4.2

misconduct] Contravention of regulationg and penalties

Any serious or persistent material non-compliaice with the provisions of {this] these

[Treasury R} regulations or_the terms of the agreement contemplated in paragraph
23.3.(c} constitutes misconduct.

Without derogating from the generality of paragraph 23.4.1, it is a serious contravention of
these regulations for any person to knowingly exceed the deduction limit contemplated in
clause 23.3. [The accounting officer of a departm ent or constitutional institution must,
in terms of applicable statutory provisions or other conditions of appointment of

« smployment applicable to any person involved in conduct contemplated in sub-item

23.4.3

{1), take disciplinary steps against such person.}

The Accountant-General may impose any of the fc{lowing penalties for the contravention
of these regulations by any person: [The Director-¢.ieneral or such other person who has
been delegated by the Director-General, including an employee of anather department
or constitutional institution, may, on just cause #:nd despite any other provision of this
Treasury Regulation, exclude any person from r« celving a deduction through Persal ]

{a) the suspension of the use of a deduction 2ode or the withdrawal of a deduction

code;
{b) the refusal of access to the Persal system fug a determined length of time;

{c) the publication of the identity of the persn and the details of the contravention

which such a person has commitied;
{d) the faying of criminal charges; and

{e) jf the person violating these regulations is an employee, direct that such person’s

23.44

coniravention be dealt with in terms of the Act.

Any person aggrieved by a decision of, or_penalt imposed by the Accountant-General,

[5.123.5

23.5.1

235.2

fe.

may appeal to the Minister of Finance and the Mins: 2r’s decision shail be final.

Transitional arrangements

A discretionary deduction which, at the date of com: nencement of this Treasury Regu'lation.
had been registered against an [employee’s) oi'icial’s salary on Persal, remains so
registered until 30 June 2001 or until such eaclier da e requested by the Jemployee] official.

A discretionary deduction contemplated in [sub-item (1)) paragraph 23,5.1 may, from the
date of commencement of this Treasury Regulatior to 30 June 2001, be amended upwards
only once and only in respect of insurance pramiums: Provided that such u;?ward
amendmeni may not exceed 15 per cent of the femium due_or R10, whichever is the

greater.

{Short titte and commencement}

[This Treasury Regulation shall be calfed the Pavroll Deduction Regulation. 2000 and
takes effect on | September 2000.]
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| 24

General definitions

24.1 Genaeral definitions

"employee" means a person in the employment of & public er ity;

"designated department”, in relation to = public entity, means a depariment designated by its
executive authority as the department responsible for the publi entity;

"designated accounting officer” means the accounting office- of a designated department,



STAATSKOQERANT, 9 MAART 2001

No. 22141

87

Treasury Regulations: PFMA

25

Application and listing

25.1

25,11

25.1.2

25.2

25.2.1

Application [Sections 47 and 76(4) of the PFMA]

These regulations apply to all:

(a)

{b)

public entities listed in Schedules 2 and 3, unless the context indicates
otherwise;

public entities not listed in Schedules 2 or 3 but which, in terms of seciion 47 of
the Act, are required to be listed.

Public entities must submit all information required by the National Treasury in terms of

the Act and these Treasury Regulations to the Registrar of Public Entities established
within the National Treasucy.

Listing [Section 47(2) of the PFMA]

An accounting authority of 2 public entity not listed in terms of section 47(2) of the Act
must submit the following information to the executive authority and the Registrar of
Pubic Entities no later than 30 June 2001:

{a)
(bj
(o)
1s}]
{e)
i3]
g
{h
(i}
®
{k)
0
{m)
(n)
{0}
ip

namae of the public entity;

main function of the public entity;
executive authority responsible for the public entity;

legisiation in terms of which the public entity was established;

dates of its incorporation and financial year end;

names of metmbers of the board or body controlling the public entity;
registered address and telephone numbers of the public entity;

name of the chief executive officer;

name of the chief financial officer;
name of the company secretary;

authority responsible for appointing the chief executive officer;

authority responsible for appointing the board of directors or controlling body;
subsidiaries under the ownership contro} of the entity:

latest audit financial statements;

amount of budgetary iransfers received over the past three financial years; and
corporate plan of the public entity.
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26

Responsibilities of designated
accounting officers

26.1

26.1.1

26.1.2

2613

26.1.4

26.1.5

Responsibilities over Schedule 3A and 3C public entities

The designated accounting officer must submit, v.ith his or her departmental strategic
plan, an assessment which outlines:

{a) the purpose of all public entities in terms of Scheduies 3A or 3C, and why its
functions cannot be undertaken by the depriment itself;

(b asgess the cost effectiveness of maintainir.g a separate public entity ta perform
the functions allocated o that entity;

() the oversight arrangements over the activi ies of such & public entity; and

{d} the remuneration levels of the accounting wthority and senior management.

The designated accounting officer must ensure th  the public entity submits monthly
reports within ten days after the end of each mon h on its actwal revenue, expendisure
and transfers received up to the end of that mont . The monthly departmental report
required in terms of sectjon 40{4){c) of the Act m ust include information provided by
public entities, as well as any other statutory fu .ds administered by the department
where funds have beea transferred , including hous 1g funds.

The designated accounting officer must monitor cor 1pliance by the public entity with the
Pyblic Finance Management Act, 1999, including:

(a) that the public entity does not borrow mon 1y or runs ap overdrafi; and
(b} that all bank accounts operated by the ent 1y are in tegms of approvals in terms
of the Public Finance Management Act, 1% 39 and these Treasury Regulations.

The designated accousting officer may, for public ¢ ntities listed in Schedule 3A and 3C,
and which have an annual budget below R100 wniflion for the next financial year,
approve the sharing of services where it is econop ical, including the audit committee,
internal audit unit, human and strategic planning.

The designaled accounting officer must ensure that appropriate financial controls are in
ptace in the public entity where such an entity has sponsibility over any funds.
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27

Internal control and corporate
management

27.1  Audit committees [Sections S1{1}a)(ii} and 76(4)(d) of the PFMA)

27.1.1 The accounting authority of a public entily must establish an audit committee for the
public entity.

27.1.2 A shared audit committee may be established for a public entity and any subsidiaries
under ihe ownership and conirol of that entity. In the case of public entities listed in
Schedute 3A and 3C which have annuat budgets of less than R100 million, the audit
committee of the designated depariment shalt fulfil this function for the public entity,
unless exempted by the National Treasury.

27.1.3  The chairperson of an audit committee may nat be 2 mernber of the controlling body or
an employee of the public entity or a political office bearer.

27.1.4 The majority of the members of an audit commitiee may not be in the employment of the
public entity or be members of the controlling body.

27.1.5  Members of an audit committee who are not in the employ of the public entity ar who are
not members of the conlrolling body must have proven experience. Their remuneration
must be in accordance with the tariffs as determined by the South African Institute of
Chartered Accountants in consultation with the Auditor-General.

27.1.6 The relevant executive authority has to concur with any pre-mature termination of
services of a person serving on the audit.

27.1.7 The audit commiltee must, in consultation with the head of internal audit, establish an
audit charter to guide the internal audit approach.

27.1.8  The audit commitiee must:-

{a) report and make recornmendations 1o the accounting suthority;

{b) report on the effectiveness of internal controls in the annual report of the
instituiion; and

{c) evaluale the financial statements of the institution for reasonableness and fair
presentation.

27.1.8  Should 2 report from internal audit {or any other source) to the audit committee implicate
any or all members of the accounting suthority in fraud, corruption or gross negligen.ce.
the chairperson of the audit committee must prompily report this 10 the relevant executive
authority and the Auditor-General.

27.1.10 The audit commitiee must comrhunicate any concems it may have to the executive
authority, the Auditor-General and if approprizte, 1o the external auditor.

ey e o
—— e,
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27.2 internal controls and Internal audit [Sections 51(1)al(i) and 76(4)(b)
and (e) of the PFMA]

27.2.1  The accounting authority must facibtate a risk assessment to determine the material risks

to which the entity may be exposed and to evaluate rhe strategy for managing those risks.
The strategy must be vsed to direct the internal audit effort and priority, and (¢ determine
the skills required to manage these risks,

27.2.2 The accounting authority must establish an internal dudit unit.

2723 A public entity and subsidiartes under the ownership control of the entity may have a
shared internal audit unit. In the case of public entities listed in Schedule 3A and 3C that
have annuai budgets of less than R100 million, the internal audit unit of the designated

department shall fulfil this function for the public entity, unless exempted by the National
Treasury,

2724 The internal audil function may, in accordance wiil- preferred tendering procedures, be
contracted out to an external institution with special.st audit expertise, provided that the
external auditors may not be involved in performing “he function of internal audit.

27.2.5 Internal audit must be conducted in accordance with the standards set by the Institute of
Internal Auditors.

27.2.6  The interpal avdit unit must, in consultation with the iudit commistee, prepare.-

(a) a rolling three-year strategic internal audit Jlan based on its assessment of key
areas of risk for the public entity, having regard {0 its currenl operations, the
operations proposed in its corporate plan ar.J its risk management strategy:

b} an annual internai audit plan for the first yeur of the rolling plan;

(©) plans indicating the scope of each audit in the annual internal audi¢ plan;

{d) a modus operandi, with management inputs to guide the audit relationship; and
(e reporis 1o the audit committee detailing i3 perlormance against the plan, to

allow effective monitoring and intervention when necessary.

27.2.7 The internal audit unit must be independent and a'de to access all information in the
possession of or available to the public entity.

27.3  Chief financlal officers

27.3.1  Untess directed otherwise by the relevant treasury, eazh public entity in Schedule 3A, .3C
and 3D with answal budgets (for the last audited fi‘ancial year) equal to or exceeding
R100 miltion, must appoint a chief financial officer by no later than 31 October 2001.

2732 Unless deemed economical by the relevant treasury for a public entity to appoint its own
chief financial officer, the chief financial officer of the designated depanment must
perform the function of chief financial officer for public entities whose expenditure
budget is less than R100 million in its last audited firancial year.
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28

Annual financial statements

28.1
28.1.1

2812

28.1.3

Financial statements {Section 55 of the PFMA]

The annual financial statements must, include a report by the directors or controlling
body and must include disclosures of director’s emolumems in accordance with the

reporting standards determined by the National Treasury.

Public entities listed in Schedules 3A and 3C of the Act must adjust their financial years
in accordance with the following table:

YEAR END CHAHGE TO PERIOD OF AUDIT
30 Aprii 2001 31 March 2002 11 months
31 May 2001 31 March 2002 10 months
30 June 2001 31 March 2002 0% months
31 July 2001 31 March 2002 08 months
31 August 2001 31 March 2602 07 months
30 September 2001 3 March 2003 18 months
31 October 2001 31 March 2003 17 months
30 November 2001 31 March 2003 16 months
31 December 2001 31 March 2003 15 months
31 January 2002 31 March 2003 14 months
28 February 2002 31 March 2003 13 months

Public entities listed in Schedules 3A and 3C of the Act, and which have annual budgets
of less than R100 million, may submit their financial statements, and any other
information required in termns of the Act to the designated accounting officer, in ordes to
enable the designated accounting ufficer to include all such information in the

depariment’s annual report.
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29

Corporate planning anc! shareholder’s
compacts

29.1
2911

29.1.:4"

2913

29.1.4

29.1.5

Carporate plansg [Section 52 of the PFMA|

The accounting authority of a public entity listad in Schedule 2, 3B and 3D must
annually establish a corporate plan for that enlity and any subsidiaries under its
ownership control. Such a corporate plan must be submitied to the designated
accounting officer within three months before the start of the financial year, for approval

by the executive authority. The approved plan mus: be submitied (o the relevant treasury
no later than one month befare the start of the financial year,

The corporate plan must cover a period of three yes s and must include:-

(a) strategic objectives and outcomes identif 2d and agreed upon by the executive
authority in the shareholder’s comnpact;

(Y] strategic and business initiatives as embocied in business function strategies:

(c) key performance measures and key indic wtars for assessing the public entities
performance in delivering the desired outc.omes and objectives;

) a risk management plan;

(e a fraud prevention plan; and

(e) a financial plan addressing:

()  projections of revenue, expenditure and borrowings;
(i)  cash flow statements:

(i} capital expenditure programmes; arv

{(iv} dividend policies.

The executive authority of a public entity may request additional information 10 be
included in the corporate plan.

Public entities listed in Schedule 2 or 3B must;

(a submit with their corporate pian to tie National Treasury, 3 three-year
botrrowing programme beginning with the first financial year of the corporate
plan; and _ .

{b) submit to the National Treasury, quorterly reports on the borrowing
programme, reflecting actual borrowing fir that quarier and any update in the
borrowing programme.

Provincial government business enterprises listed in Schedule 3D and authorised to
borrow by the Miaister of Finance imust:-

{a) with their corporate plans submit to the MEC for Finance in that province, 3
three year borrowing programme beginning with the first fina.nc%aI year of_ the
corporate plan, but which must be in terms of approvals and limits determined
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by the Minister, and in terms of the Bomrowing Powers of Provincial
Governments Aet; and

(b) submit to the MEC for Finance in the province, quarterly reporis on the
approved borrowing programme, reflecting actual borrowing for that quarter
and any update in the borrowing pragramme.

29.1.6  The MEC mentioned in paragraph 29.1.5 must forward to the National Treasury:-

29,17

29.2

29.21

2922

29.3

29.3.1

29.3.2

{a)  acopy of the corporate plan and appraved borrowing plan;

(b)  quarteriy updates reflecting actual borrowing for that quarter; and

(c)  any update in the borrowing programme of all provincial government business
enterprises listed in Schedule 3D that are authotised 1o borrow.

The borrowing programme referred to in paragraphs 28.1.4 and 29.1.5 must include:-

{a}  the termas and conditions on which the money is borrowed;

(b)  information on proposed domestic borrowing;

{c) for national public entities, information on propased foreign borrowing within

' the prescribed limit, where applicable;

{(d)  short and long temm borrowing;

{e) the relation of borrowing to a pre-approved corporate plan;

{)  the maturity profile of the debt;

(g) the confirmation of compliance with existing and proposed loan covenants;

{h  debis guaranieed by government;

i)  mactivations for govemment guarantees, if required and

{j}  approval of the borrowing programme by the executive authority of the public
enfity when required by iegislation in terms of which the public entity was
established.

Shareholder's compact

The accounting authority for a public entity listed in Schedule 2, 1B and 3D must, in
consuliation with the executive aathority of the public entity, annually conciude a
shareholder’s campact.

The shareholder’s compact must document the mandate key performance measures and
indicators to be attained by the public entity as agreed between the accounting authority
and the executive authority.

Evaluation of performance

The accounting authority of a public entity must establish procedures for quarterly
repocting lo the executive authority in order to facilitate effective performance
monitoring, evaluation and corrective action,

The accounting authority must issue quarterty reports to the executive suthority no later
than 30 days after the end of each quarter.
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30

Annual budgets and strategic
planning

30.1
3011

30.2

30.2.1

30.2.2

30.2.3

30.2.4

30.3

3031

3032

Annual Budgets

For‘ the purposes of section 52(a) of the Act, an accounting authority must submit to the
dg:g:nated accounting officer, by 30 June 2001, the proposed annual budge for the nexi
financial year and the following two financial years, including any projections of revenue

and expenditure in the format determined by the Na ional Treasury. This budget must be
approved by the executive authority.

Strategic plan

The accounting authority for a public entity listed in Schedule 3A and 3C must submit by

36 June 2001, a proposed strategic plan for the next financial year for approval by the
relevant executive authority.

The strategic plan must be finalised and submitted refore the start of the 2002 financial
year.

The strategic plan must:

(@) cover a period of three years;

(b} include objectives and outcomes as identifiad by ine execulive authority;

{c} include multi-year projections of revenue and expenditure;

{d) include key performance measures and key indicators for assessing the public

entity's performance in delivering the desired outcomes and objectives;

{e) be updated annually on a rolling basis; and :

(i form the basis for the annual reports of accounting authorities in terms of
section 55 of the Act,

The executive authority may request addiiional nformation to be included in the
strategic plan.

Evaluation of performance

The accounting authority of a public entity mus: establish procedures for quarterly
reporting (o the executive authority in order to facititate effective performance
monitoring, evaluation and corrective action. .

The accounting authority must submit monthly financial reports fo the designated
accounting officer no tater than 15 days after the end of each month, on actual revenue
and expenditure received for the financial year up 16 the end of that month.
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31

Cash, banking and investment

management

311 Cash management [Section 7(1) of the PFMA]

3t.1.1  The accounting authority of a public entity listed in Schedule 3 is responsible for
establishing sysiems, procedures, processes and training and awareness programmes !
ensure efficient and effeclive banking and cash management.

31.1.2  The public entity may not enter into an overdraft except with the written approval of t
Minister of Finance,

31.1.3

The accounting authority must ensure that the public eatity’s cash management
pesformance is reperied on a regular basis but at least monthly.

31.2  Banking framework [Sections 7(2) and (3) of the PFMA]

31.2.1  The relevant treasary’s approval of the bank is required when a public entily listed in

Schedute 3 intends to cpen a new bank account. For purposes of section 7(2)(s) of the
Act, existing banking arrangements can be regarded as mppraved by the National

Treasury, but the accounting authority must submit by 31 May 2001 a list of all such
banking accountis.

31.2.2  When going out on tender, and if the relevant treasury has not proposed its own bank, the
public entity must take inta account:-

{a) that the baok is registered with the South African Registrar of Banks:

(b) that the bank is a member or sponsored by 3 member of the Payments
Association of Sauth Africa (PASA);

coniracling by the bank with persons, or categories of persons historically

disadvantaged by unfair discrimination on the basis of race, gender or

disability;

(d) the cost ¢ffectiveness; and

(e the ability of the bank to provide the required services which includes sufficient
systems, infrastruciure and branch networks.

{c)

3123  The adjudication and awarding of tenders must be done in accordance with public entity’s

own internal tendering procedures.

31.2.6 Only the accounting authority or the person holding the position within the public entity

io whom such authorisation has been delegated may open a bank account.

31.3 Investment policy [Sections 7(4) and 53(3) of the PFMA]

31.3.1 A government husiness enterprise listed in Schedule 2, 3B and 3D or a public entity listed

in Schedule 3A or 3C authorised to invest susplus funds, must have an investent policy
approved by the accounting authority.
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31.3.2  The investment policy referred to in paragraph 31.3.1 must include:

31.3.3

"4

(a)
{t)
{c)

o

(@)
)
4]

selection of counter-parties through credit risk analysis;
establishment of investment limits per institution; _
establishment of investment limits per investment instrument; !
monitoring of investments against limits;

re-assessment of investment policies on a rgular basis;

re-assessment Of counter-party credit risk based on credit ratings;
assessment of investment insiruments basec: on Hquidily requirements.

Public entities listed in Schedule 3A and 3C must annuaily obtain the approval of the
National Treasury to accumulate surpluses.

Public entities authorised 1o invest surplus funds may only:

()
b

invest aggregate surplus funds with the Cororation for Public Deposits (CPD),
where such surpluses ace in excess of R 1 million;

invest aggregate surplus funds in an institution with an investment grade rating,
n:here such suspluses are fess than R 1 million.
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Borrowings

32.1 Borrowlng [Saection 66 of the PFMA]

32.1.1 Public entities listed in Schedules 3A and 3D may only borraw money for bridging
purposes with the approval of the Minister of Finance, subject to the following

conditions:

(a) the debt must be te-paid within 30 days after the end of the financial year;

(b borrowing may not exceed a fimit pre-determined by the Minister of Finance,
in consuitation with the national executive authority or provincial MEC for
Finance, may be appropriate;

() foreign borrowing may not be underiaken;

{d} a request for borrowing for bridging purposes must be submitted to the Minister

. of Finance at least 30 days before the borrowing. The following must be
submitted together with the request:-

{i) =2 detailed cash flow and income and expenditure statement indicating
fiow the debt will be re-paid during the prescribed; and
(i} the terms and conditions on which the money is barrowed.

32.1.2 'The provisions in this chapter do not preclude the use of credit cards, fleet management
cards or other credit facility repayable withins 30 days from the date of statement,
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33

Financial misconduct

331

3311

3312

3313

33.1.4

33.2

3321

3322

33

3331

Investigation of alleged financial misconduct [Sections 85(1)(h), (c}
and {d) of the PFMA]

i an employee is alleged to have committed finacial rrisconduct, the accounting
authority of the public entity must ensure that disciplinary proceedings are carried out in
accordance with the relevant prescripts applicable to that entity,

The accounting authority must ensure that the invstigation is conducted withic a
reasonable period.

If an accounting authority or any of its members is alfeged to have committed financial
misconduct, the relevant executive authority, as soon s he or she becomes aware of the

alleged misconduct, must ensure that appropriate dis iplinary proceedings are initiated
against the accounting authorily or mermber(s) responsi ie.

A treasury may after constltation with the executive au hority:-

{a) direct (hat a person other than an employee of the public entity conducts the
investigation;

) issue any reasonable requirement regarding e way in which the investigation
should be performed.

Criminal proceedings [Saction 86 of the PFVA)

The accounting authorily must advise the executive avthority, the relevant treasuty and

the Auditor-General of any criminal charges it has laid against any person in terms of
section 86 of the Act.

The executive authority or relevant treasury may direc a public entity to lay charges of

criminal financial misconduct against any person should an accounting authority fail to
take appropriaie action.

Reporting (Section 85(1}(a) and () of the PFMA]

The accounting authorily must, on an annuai basis, submit 10 the executive authority, the
relevant treasury and Auditor-Gengral a schedule of -

(a) the name and rank of officials facing disciplir iry hearings or criminal charges;
{b) the autcome of any disciplinary bearings and/or criminal charges;. alnd
{c) the sanctions and any further action taken agawnst the relevant official.

" Such a report refers to any significant changes to the p:tblic entity’s systems of financial

and risk management of any other maiter dealt with in th= Act, as a result of the
investigation.
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